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BOUNDARY STONES

Official Limits of District Have Been Sub-
- ject for Scientific Surveys Since
~ Original Ceremony.

By John Clagett Proctor.

OW THAT 8pring has put in

-1. its actual appearance and the
.weather is graduslly getting

. warmer, one thing the writer
hutosumsttot.hoaewuo are able
to tramp through the woodl is to find
out and locate the corner stones, and
the intervening stones, surrounding
of Columbla

nd 1792. when much of this part of
ryland and Virginia was about as it
as when the Indians used it as their
unting grounds. Indeed, Maj.  An-
rew Ellicott, who surveyed thé Ten
es Square, in writing of this terri-
in 1791, made this intereating
tement: “There is not one house
t has any flcor except the earth,
d, what is more strange, it is in the
of Alexandris

For my years, only & few of the
to stores surrounding the ‘District, as
originally planned, were identified, and
{t was not until about 1897 that Mar-
sus Biaker, a well-known scientist,
made an investigation of the stones
still standing and prepared & paper on
the subject for the Columbia Historical
Bociety. Subsequently, Pred E. Wood-
wlrd another member of this soclety,
ldded much information and material
on this interesting topic, until today
the subject has been pretty thoroughly
covered and all the stones account-
od for.

HE laying of the first corner stone
I* of the District of Columbia, at
Jones Point, a short distance below
Alexandrh Va., on April 185, 1791, was
an event of much consequence at the
time, and shortly after the Society of
Natives of the District of Columbia was
formed, March 27, 1920, it decided to
adopt the date of the laying of the
nitia] corner stone as District day, and
. it further decided fo celebrate this
date with a banquet, a custom which
has continued since with few excep-
tions. |
President Washington was very anx-'
fous to include Alexandria, Va., in the
sres to bejtaken for the Nation's Cap-
ita], and since the act of July 16, 1790,
it this, an amendatory act
March 3, 1791, which re-
e first corner stone being

dlngkacalhiswry made, but
ry of prime importance
well, and few today would
fact that had the Capital

gainsay th
been phcﬁ elsewhere it is quite prob-
able it would never have become the

moving 1 when the occasion war-

ted it and he was not taking any
hances having his plans upset
fter ha once decided upon the

pointed by him, in placing the four
boundaty llneq of the District, that

it waszs not until June,
Iater, that it was replaced
rmanent stone as we see

cises connected with the
I of this corner stone were
ponducted under the auspices of

Pod(o Nol 22, F. A and A. M, of
Alexan , chartered under the grand
gurudlcu of Virginia, April 28, 1788,
:nd of w] Gen. Washington became

Fresldent

April 30, 1789—just two days short
©of a calendar year from the firsh date.
p'hu lodge is now known as Alex-

andria-W hington Lodge, No. 22, and”

t.houunds of tourists sannually visit
m lodge [room to see the Masonic
relics connected with the life of the
st Preai ent.
t‘ Cullen Dick, who was
orship!u master of the lodge, and
Vho officiated as such at the corner-
stone 1aying, was a close friend of
esident Washington, attending him
his  last illness, making arrange-

ents for his funeral, and eyen finally |

orming the interesting ceremonies
f the Masonic order at his funeral
Accompanying Dr./Dick to Jones
int, upon this memorable occasion,
were, in addition to the officers of the
ﬁod:e the mayor and Common Council-
of Alexandria and s large number of
"cmaem and strangers.”

Amuvmo at the point, Rev. Jamu
Muir, D. D, chaplain of the lodge,
delim'ed an addreu and a thought-
ml writer, who happened to be present,
contributed to s Philadelphis paper
the following interesting, though brief
-coount of the event as he saw it
I “Alexandria, April 21 111,
| "“On Friday, the 15th instant, the
Hon. Daniel Carrall and Hon. David
Steuart srrived in this town to super-
lnundtheﬂxinzo!themﬂeorw
stone of the Federsl District.
| “The mayor and commanalty, to-

gether with 'the members of the

of wheat, and barley, and vines, and
fig trees, and pomegranates~—a land
‘of pil, olivee and honey—a land
wherein we eat bresd without scarce-
ness, and have lack of nothing-—a land
whose stones are iron, and out of
whose hills thou mayst dig brass—a
land which the Lord thy God careth
for; the eyes of the Lord thy God are

always upon it, from the beginning of |.

the year even unto the end of the
year.

virtuous, and they shall insure the in-
duigence of Providence; may they be
unanimous and just, and they shall
rise to greatness; may true patriotism
actuate every heart, may it be the de-
vout and universal wish; peace be
within they walls, O .America, and
prosperity within thy paluces. Amiable
it is for brethren to dwell together in
unity; it is more fragrant than the
perfumes on Aaron’s garment; it is
more refreshing than the dewa on
Hermon's hiil,

““‘May this stone long commemorate
the goodness of God in those uncom-
mon events which have given America
& name among nations. Under this
stone may jealousy and selfishness be
forever buried. From this stone may
& superstructure ariz: whose glory,
whose magnificence, whose stability,
unequaled hitherto, shall astonish the
world and invite even the savage of
the wilderness to take shelter under
its roof.’

HE company partook of some re-
freshments and then .returned to
the place from whence they came,
where a number of toasts were drunk,
and the following was delivered by the
master of the lodge (Dr. Dick) and
was received with every token of ap-
probation:
~ “‘Brethren and (ent!emen' May
Jealousy, that green-eyed monster, be
buried deep under the work which we
have this day completed, never to rise
again within the Federal District’ "
In addition to the lodge- officers
mentioned, the following persons are
included among the names of those

-also present:

“John Allison, Joseph Greenway,
Benjamin A. Hamp, Michael Madden,
Col. Dennis Ramsay, Col. Charles
Simms, Thomas West, Jesse Taylor,
jv.; John Harper, John' Hawkins,
Jonathan 8wift, Robert McCres, Wil-
liam Hodgson, John Dunlap, willlam
Herbert, Robert Sanford, Willlam
Hunter, sr.; Edward Harper, Willlam
Hunter, jr.. Charles Turner and
Michael Gretter.”

The original surveys for the seat of
the Federa! Government were made
by Maj. Pierre Charles L'Enfant,
whose remains repose in Arlington
National Cemetery. And we are told
that the lines were run under the
, | personal direction of Gen. Washing-
ton, a practical surveyor. But when
we check up on the occasions that
the First President was in this vicin-

ity during the period the surveying

was being done, and the length of
time he remained here, and the wuy
he put in his time, it can ‘easily be
seen that he had little time avallable
for. actual surveying or for tramping
around all-over the 100 square

as it originally included.

IN A resurvey of the District boun-

dary lines made by the United
States Coast and Geodetic Survey,
commenced in 1881, some errors were
found to exist, - However, when.the
writer brought this fact to the atten-
tion of the District surveyor, Edward
A. Dent, this official sald that con-
sidering the instruments used at the
time, such inaccuracies were not un-
usual. He further said that where
intervening stones, between corner
stones, were found to be out of align.
ment, the line was made accurate by
piacing additional stones to mark the
correct line. In speaking of these
errors, Mr. Woodward says: '

“To be exact, the northwestern and
southeastern lines exceed 10 statute
miles by 63 feet and 70.5 feet, re-
spectively; and the northeastern and
southwestern lines also exceed 10
statute miles by 263.1 feet and 230.6
feet, respectively.

“These irregularities throw the north
corner of the District 1162 feet to

“‘May Americans be mtetul. and |

-

Jones Point Lighthouse, in tha wall o whighl is the first .

District of Columbia corner atone, laid A

the west of the meridian of the louth
or original stone and slso throw the
west corner 138.6: feet farther to the
north than the east corner. A closer
examination shows that the distances
between the auccessive stones vary
considerably from exact miles, and in
no asingle instance can a milestone
be found placed at exactly a distance
of 1 mile from its neighbor. The
nearest approach to an exact mile
is between Nos. 1 and 2 on the southe
west line, near Benning,  and :be-
tween Nos. 7 and 8 on the northwest
line, near Chevy Chase Circle, each
of which measures 5,279 feet, or 1
foot short of a mile.

“These errors in measurement
amount to as much' as 40 feet over
s mile in one instance, and to 138
feét short in another of the various
intervals, and these discrepancies
apply to those spaces which are sup-
posed to be exact miles and not to
certain spaces which were intended
to be either more or less than a mile
and are so marked.”

»IN-BUBVEYXNG the four lines of the

District of Columbia, and in lay-
ing off the streets of the city, Kllicott
was materially assisted by Benjamin
Bannaker, a free colored man, of
partly white extraction, whose knowl-
edge of the exact scienoces was sufe
ficlently remarkable to attract the at-
tention of both Washington and Jet-
ferson. He was a marvel in mathe-
matics, and was recognised for his
work by the French Academy of
Sclences. Apparenty he was of the
type of Prederick Douglass, for he is
described as being noble and imposing
in appearance.

“His broadcloth coat,” we are told,
“though of anclent cut, was of good
material and adorned with antique
metal buttons. Later in life he is de-
r~vibed as having a venerable face and
an abundance of white hair, which
caused him to become an object of
much intarest.”

The Bannaker Public’ school in this
(city, for colored children, is named for
‘this ocelebrated protege of Maj. Eli-
cott.

. But the Ten Miles Square was not
to 1ast for always. Indeed, Alexandris
did not feel it was being given a
square deal by the United Stites Gov-
ernment—just as-the people of Wash-
ington have always felt, and-still feel—
and as early as 1824 the residents of
our neighboring city decided to test
out the voice of its people, in order to
petition Congress for the privilege of
returning' to the sovereignty of Vir-
ginia, but the vote at this time was
286 for the proposition and 404 against.

Two decades later the matter again
came up, with the result that 763 voted
for returning to Virginia against 222
who preferred to remain a part of the
Federal Territory, and, accordingly,
after Congress had legislated on the
matter, President Polk, by proclama-
tion of September 7, 1846, announced
that the portion of the District de-
rived from the State of Virginia was
receded. And, naturally, all the boun-
dary stones:on the southwest side of
the District, together with several on
the northwest side, have since then
been within: the Old Dominion State,
and this lncludes the west corner stone,
whlgh 18 fisst about 1 mile nocthwest of

15,1

North corner stone of the District, on the ‘East-West High-
way about 1 mile west o, Stlver Spring. .

Northeast corner stone No. 6, near Brentwood road.

the town of Falls .Church. Thirty | about 35 years ago. Upon this ocea- |

years ago, according to Mr. Woodward,
this stone was standing at the edge of
a little grove of trees, and was some-
what crowded by a large oak tree that
seriously endangered it.

‘The corner stone at the east point

of the Dlstrict is said to stand on Jével
marsh ground, owned, in 1906, by J.
W. Lee, & colored 1aan, and is about
500 feet south of the Chesapeake Beach
Junction.

The .corner stone at the northern

point of the District stands on ground

once a part of the estate of P. Fenwick,
and later the property of the heirs of
D. Clagett., This stone has been
surrounded with an iron railing fence,
provided: by the local body of the
Daughters of the American Revolu-~
tion, and is only one of & number
similarly cared for by this organiza-
tion.. It stands in a ravine close by
the East-West Highway, and probably
less than half a mile from the circle
at the District line and Bixteenth
street, going northwest.

T WAS from the initial stone at
Jones Point that a meridian line
was drawn across the Jefferson stone,
thenoce through the White House,
north along thf_ center of Sixteenth
street, over Peter's Hill, later called
Meridian Hill, to the intersection of
the disgonal lines where was the north
stone before referred to as being on
the East-West Highway.

Regarding the Jefferson stone, the
Capitol stone and the Meridian stone—
sll but the latter being placed within
the old city limits—there has been
much controversy, but after having
read the several discussions, the writer
is inclined to agree with James A,
Wineberger, whose account of these
stones—evidently prepared with much
care and pains—appesared in The Star

sion Mr. Wineberger said:

“Upon this line, about 80 yerds
south of the preaént stand pipe, near
the brow of the hill, Commodore David
Porter had a mansion, the entrance

door of which was due north of the
center door of the President’s house.
On the edge of the south lawn, in
close proximity to the house, was
placed the meridian atone.

“It was wrought and near 2 feet
across, and of the same height. - The
north edge of it was circular,. and
upon it was afterward placed a brass
sun dial. Prom this stone Meridian
Hill received its name. The old
mansion was occasionally occuplied by
President John Q. Adams during 8um-
mer months; at & later period it was
removed,

“The mer!dlm stone was sllowed
to remain until about the time of the
opening of Sixteenth ‘street. extended,
when it was removed to its present
place, at the southwest corner of
Fourteenth and R atreets northwest,
and where it is used as s carriage
step. This disposition of an old and
valued landmark by the then county
slirveyor gave rise to angry expressions
of condemnation by many of the
citizens. The precise spot should have
been noted when the stone was taken

up, and then, after the street was |

completed, the stone should have
been replanted below the surface,
The line crossing the meridia* at a
right angle near the Washington
obelisk extends west across the Poto-

Lmac and passes near old Fort Cor-

coran, and on to the intersection of
the diagonal lines to a stone at the

west point of the District, near the |

village of Falls Church, in Virginia.
Eastward it extends through the ro-
tunda of the Capitol and center of
East- Capitol atreet, crossing the
Anacostia, and on to the intersection
of the diagonal lines to a stone at the

East corner atone of the numct wtth Fred K. Woodward

standing nearby. .

eut point of the District, about 3
miles east of Benning bridge.

“ A’I‘ THE croasing of these lines

near the Washington obelisk was
located in 1793 the stone which desig-
nates the oenter of the 10 miles square,
called the Jefferson or center stone.
“It has been used as the basis for
the bench mark calculations for the|
city grades, and the origina]l measure-
ment for the Washington obelisk was
taken from {t. It was situated about
150 yards northwest from the obelisk
on the banks of old Tiber creek, It
had a blue rock foundation, whic

side, and covered by a
stone cap about 5 feet square and.
inches thick. On the south side th
shore earth covered it partly.

QGen. Bsbcock, the
public buildings and grounds, throug
& mistake in its identity. What re
mains of the original masonry
covered by earth several feet
when the roadway was made, It
\on the east aide of the road line be
tween the lakes and the intersectliol
of Virginia avenue. Its longitude
79 degreef 17 minutes 16 seconds.”

In this connection it |may be atated

that there is another stone (we wm
call it the Capitol stone, now standing
about 85 yards westerly from ym
ohelisk.

“It is & rouch-hewn freestone, now
somewhat mutilated, and pmjecu
above the surrounding earth about
3 feet, being 1 foot in diameter 'on
the earth line and 8 inches across
at the top. Since it was located the
surrounding earth has been excavat
(except that portion immediately
around it) to a depth of about 4 féet.
The distance between this stone and
the center stone corresponds with
half the length of the old part of the

Capitol Building (wherefore its name)

and there can be no doubt but that
it was placed to represent a point due
west of the south end of the old Capitol
Buildipg. This fact has been entirely
unknown smong the many authors

.| of handbooks of Washington city.

Gen. Babcock seems also to have been
ignorant of .the .character - of this
stone, when, as commissioner of pub-
lic bulldings and grounds, he took
this stone to be on a line with the
President's House.!’

HE reference to the old standpipe
thd{t ce stood in the oenter of
leteeqth wtroet at, about where it

bring back fond recollections to msnyt
an old-timer who in his boyhood days
delighted in throwing stones against.
its iron sides in order to hear the
clamorous noise it made, and when
this pastime became monotonous,
threw the stones in the af air so that
they would fall within the’cylindrical
structure.

This standpipe . served to supply
Potomac water to Capitol Hill and -
other high points of Washington. It
was on the beaten path to Rock Creek, '
where the boys went to swim in the
Summer, and became quite a land-
mark before it was removed - many.
years ago. It was built by Gray &
Noyes, whose iron foundry was on
Maine avenue, near Third street southe:
west. ’

Not far to the south of this was
the log cabin of Joaquin Miller, poet
of the Bierras, which was early re.
moved. and is now laca.bed in Rock"
Creek Park.

At this time, instead of embmlu
and fine homes, Meridian Hill was
occupied—with one or two exceptions
—bhy a few shacks and small dwellings,
and the vacant ground, of which -
there was considerable, furnished
pasturege for cows owned by the peo-
p{: of Cow Town and other outlying .
Dinces. - :

_munm th Kalorama road will

T






